General Industry Supply Systems Accessory Kits

For use with non-heated bulk supply of medium to high viscosity materials. For professional use only.

Not approved for use in explosive atmospheres or hazardous locations.



Important Safety Instructions

Read all warnings and instructions in this manual and in the General Industry Supply Systems, Operation-Parts manual. Save all instructions.



24W477 System Model Shown



334222B

EN

Contents

Related Manuals3
Accessory Kits
Warnings 4
Component Identification5
Installation6
Grounding 6
Attach the Monitoring Controls6
Attach the Power Valve7
Attach the Cycle Counter7
Attach and Adjust Drum Low/Empty Sensor 7
Attach the Light Tower (Optional)
Attach the Customer Signal Module Kit (Optional) 8
Connect Power to the Monitoring Controls
(Optional)
Remote Data Trak Controls and Indicators 10
Startup
Run Mode
Prime Mode
Setup Mode
Diagnostic Mode
Data Frak Diagnostic Codes
Parts
Data I rak, 2499477
(PLC) Machine Monitoring Kit, 24W478 22
Light Tower Kit, 127187
Customer Signal Module Kit, 24V979 23
Schematics
DataTrak 24
Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring Kit 24
Technical Data 25
Graco Standard Warranty 26
Graco Information

Related Manuals

See General Industry Supply Systems, Operation-Parts manual for related manuals

Accessory Kits

Accessory Number	Accessory Name
24W477	Remote DataTrak [™] Machine Monitoring Kit
24W478	Customer Provided Programmable Logic Control- ler (PLC) Machine Monitoring Kit
127187	Light Tower Kit (Only available with kit 24W477)
24V979	Customer Signal Module Kit (Only available with kit 24W477)

Warnings

The following warnings are for the setup, use, grounding, maintenance, and repair of this equipment. The exclamation point symbol alerts you to a general warning and the hazard symbol refers to procedure-specific risk. Refer back to these warnings. Additional, product-specific warnings may be found throughout the body of this manual where applicable.



Component Identification



24W477 Model Shown

FIG. 1

Key:

- A Display Module (Kit 24W477) Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring Kit Control Box (Kit 24W478)
- B AC Adapter
- C Drum Low/Empty Sensor
- D Piston Collars
- E Light Tower (Kit 127187)
- F Customer Signal Module (Kit 24V979)
- G Power Valve
- H Cycle Counter

Installation

NOTICE

To avoid injury or machine damage, perform **Shutdown Procedure** found within the General Industry Supply Systems, Operation-Parts manual prior to installing any of the following kits.

NOTICE

To avoid machine damage, route all cables to avoid pinching during normal machine operation.

Grounding



The equipment must be grounded to reduce the risk of static sparking and electric shock. Electric or static sparking can cause fumes to ignite or explode. Improper grounding can cause electric shock. Grounding provides an escape wire for the electric current.

DataTrak: ground through AC adapter.

Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring Kit: ground through customer supplied grounding source.

Light Tower: ground through DataTrak kit cable.

Customer Signal Module: ground through DataTrak kit cable.

Attach the Monitoring Controls

DataTrak



- 1. Attach the Display Module (DM) bracket to the left air cylinder.
- 2. Attach the DM to the bracket.
- 3. Plug the D-Sub harness into the bottom of the DM.

Customer Provided PLC



1. Attach the monitoring control box to the left air cylinder.

Attach the Power Valve



- 1. Remove the air line from the air motor.
- 2. Apply thread sealant to all male fittings and install the power valve as shown.

NOTE: Verify that port "1" of the power valve will receive the incoming air supply once installed.

- 3. Connect the air supply line.
- 4. DataTrak: Connect the power valve to the DIN connector on the D-Sub harness of the remote Data-Trak.

Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring Kit: Connect the power valve to the DIN connector of the control box.

Attach the Cycle Counter

- 1. Attach the cycle counter to the air motor with the screw provided on the cycle counter.
- 2. DataTrak: Connect the cycle counter to the blue labeled connector on the D-Sub harness. **Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring** Kit: Connect the sensor to the 4 meter (13 feet) M12 gray connector of the control box.

Attach and Adjust Drum Low/Empty Sensor

DataTrak

Customer Provided

ing Kit





- 1. Position ram at desired level (low or empty).
- 2. Attach the sensor bracket to the mounting bracket or ram cylinder.
- 3. To measure either drum low or drum empty, attach the sensor to the sensor bracket.
- 4. Attach the piston collar to the ram piston rod, near the top, so it passes in front of the sensor at the correct level for drum low or drum empty.
- 5. Make precise adjustments by moving the sensor within the slot on the sensor bracket.
- 6. DataTrak: Connect the sensor to the yellow labeled connector on the D-Sub harness. **Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring** Kit: Connect the sensor to the 1 meter (3 feet) M12 gray connector of the control box.

Attach the Light Tower (Optional)

Table 1: Light Tower Signals

Signal	Description
Yellow flashing	A low priority error exists.
Yellow on	A medium priority error exists.
Red flashing	A high priority error exists.
Red on	The system is shut down due to error conditions.



- 1. Attach the light tower to the DM bracket.
- 2. Connect the light tower to the red labeled connector on the D-Sub harness.

Attach the Customer Signal Module Kit (Optional)

- 1. Attach the customer signal module to an accessible location.
- 2. Using 18 gauge wire or smaller, connect the M12 connector terminals to the module.





M12 Pin No.		Module Terminal No.	Function
1	s to		
2	lect	2	Cycle Counter Output
3	uuo	3	VDC Common
4	0	4	Drum Low Output
5		5	General Fault Output

- 3. Connect the M12 connector to the green labeled connector on the D-Sub harness.
- 4. Connect the customer provided user interface to the appropriate terminals of the module.

Connect Power to the Monitoring Controls (Optional)

DataTrak

- 1. Connect the AC adapter to the black labeled connector on the D-Sub harness.
- 2. Plug the AC adapter into a 100-240V, 50-60 Hz power source.

Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring Kit

1. Using 22 gauge wire or smaller, connect the customer provided 24+ VDC power source and signals to the terminals.

NOTE: The low level sensor sends a high signal when

activated. Refer to Schematics, page 24.



Module Terminal No.	Customer Required Con- nection	Function
+		
+	24+ VDC	power to components
+		
-	VDC Common	Low level sensor common
P1	VDC Common	Low level sensor acti- vated signal
P2	with indicator (LED)	Cycle counter - Up
P3		Cycle counter - Down
P4	VDC Common with normally open switch	Activate power valve

Remote DataTrak Controls and Indicators

Key for FIG. 2

- SC Display Screen
- LE LED (diagnostic indicator when lit)
- FR Flow Rate Units, user settable to:

/min, = cycles per minute

gpm [US] = gallons per minute, United States gpm [UK] = gallons per minute, United Kingdom oz/min [US] = ounces per minute United States oz/min [UK] = ounces per minute United Kingdom l/min = liters per minute cc/min = cubic centimeters per minute

VU Volume Units

- PF Prime/Flush Key
- RK Reset/Cancel Key (also used to scroll)
- CF Cycle/Flow Rate
- JT Job Total Counter, resettable
- MC Maintenance Counter
- MS Maintenance Counter Setpoint
- DV Drum Volume Remaining
- DS Drum Size
- DF Drum Fill Volume
- RT Runaway Protection (enable/disable)
- RS Runaway Cycle Rate
- PV Displacement Pump Volume







Setup Mode



FIG. 2. Remote DataTrak Controls and Indicators

Remote DataTrak Operation

NOTICE

To prevent damage to soft key buttons, do not press the buttons with sharp objects such as pens, plastic cards, or fingernails.

Startup

1. Turn the main air ball valve off before turning the remote DataTrak power on.

NOTICE

If the motor air valve is not turned off, the air supply to the motor will automatically turn on via activation of the air solenoid when the display changes from the Splash screen to Run mode.

- 2. Turn on the remote DataTrak system by plugging the AC adapter into a 100-240V power supply.
- 3. The Splash screen (FIG. 3) will flash on while the progress bar fills from left to right. It will then go directly to Run mode (FIG. 4).
- 4. Follow the Start and Adjust Pump procedure in the pump manual.



FIG. 3: Splash Screen

Run Mode

See FIG. 2 and FIG. 4.

The Run Mode screen displays the resettable job total counter (JT), maintenance counter (MC), cycle/flow rate (CF), and the remaining volume in the drum (DV) in both numeric and icon versions.

NOTE: All items are displayed using the defined volume units (VU).



FIG. 4: Run Mode Screen

Key Functions When in Run Mode

- 1. To enter Prime Mode, press and release **(**).
- To enter Setup Mode (page 12), press and hold
 for 3 seconds.
- To enter Diagnostic Mode (page 15), press and release X. The system will enter Diagnostic Mode only if there are active warnings/alarms.
- 4. To reset the job total counter, press and hold **X** from Run Mode for 3 seconds.

Prime Mode

See FIG. 5.

 Press to enter Prime Mode screen. The Prime symbol (PS) will appear in the display and the LED (LE, Fig. 2) will flash.



- 2. While in Prime Mode, the job total counter (JT) is blank and will not count. However, the maintenance counter (MC) will continue to decrement.
- 3. When a new drum is installed, press and hold while in Prime Mode to reset the drum volume remaining (DV) to the drum fill volume (DF).
- 4. To exit Prime Mode, press ①. The Prime symbol will disappear and the LED will stop flashing; the screen will return to Run Mode (FIG. 4).
- 5. To enter Setup Mode, press and hold 🔷 for 3 seconds.

Setup Mode

NOTE: If a key is not pressed within one minute of entering a setup screen, the system will return to Run Mode (FIG. 4).

See FIG. 2. Press and hold 🔷 for 3 seconds.

• If a password has not been assigned (set to '0000'), the system will go directly to Setup screen 1.

Password Screen

If a password has been assigned (not set to '0000'), the Password screen will appear (FIG. 6). Enter the password to access the Setup screens.



FIG. 6: Password Screen

- 1. To enter a password, press 🕅 to enter edit mode.
- 2. Once in edit mode, press 😿 to scroll through digits.
- 3. Press to select the correct digit and move on to the next.
- 4. When password is correct, press 🕥 on the rightmost digit to submit the password.

Setup Screen 1

Use Setup screen 1 to set runaway cycle rate (RS), enable/disable runaway protection (RT), select pump volume per cycle (PV), select flow rate units (FR), enter drum size (DS), and enter drum fill volume (DF). See FIG. 7.

1. Press to toggle from field to field through the screen.

NOTE: If you go past a field you want to edit, toggle through the remaining fields, exit the Setup mode, and reenter Setup. It is impossible to back up in the Setup screens.

- 2. Press XX to scroll through available values for each field.
- 3. Press 🔷 again to set the value and move the cursor to the next data field.

Runaway Cycle Rate/Enable Runaway Protection

NOTE: Graco recommends setting runaway cycle rate (RS) to 60 or less. Choose a value that is just above the maximum cycle rate of the application.



NOTE: When runaway protection is enabled (RT), a \checkmark will appear on the setup screen. See Fig. 7.

Displacement Pump Volume

Press to scroll through the available displacement pump volumes (PV) in cc per cycle. set the values to the pump size installed.

Flow Rate Units

Press **X** to scroll through the available flow rate units. See **Key** on page 10. The selected units will be used to display flow rate and volume on the main Run screen and most of the setup values.

NOTE: Initially, choose units that will allow easy definition of the setup values (e.g. drum volume in gallons). Then, return and select the flow rate unit to display on the Run screen. The defined setup values will convert automatically.

Drum Size

Use DS to enter the size of the container.

Drum Fill Volume

Use the Drum Fill Volume field (DF) to enter the exact volume of material in the drum. Contact supplier for exact volume. This value is used to determine the remaining volume in the drum.

4. To move to Setup screen 2, move the cursor to the

Drum Fill Volume field (DF), then press **(**) once more.



Setup Screen 2

Use Setup screen 2 to set the maintenance counter setpoint (MC), reset the maintenance counter, enable/disable diagnostic codes (EC), and choose whether the E7 drum icon (DL) will indicate when the drum is low or when the drum is completely empty.



- 1. Press to toggle from field to field through the screen.
- Press XX to scroll through available values for each field.
- 3. Press 🔷 again to set the value and move the cursor to the next data field.

Maintenance Counter

Use the maintenance counter setpoint (MS) to set the maintenance schedule based on the units dis-

played. Press and hold **X** for 3 seconds when the entire MS field is highlighted to reset the MC value.

4. See page 16 for a description of E1, E2, and E4 diagnostic codes.

NOTE: When E1, E2, and E4 diagnostic options are enabled, a ✓ will appear on the setup screen. See FIG. 8.

Drum Low/Empty Diagnostic Code

The E7 drum icon can represent either a drum low or a drum empty.

Drum Low: A drum low setting will result in a warning condition. The icon will show as an almost empty drum. The light tower and diagnostic LED will signal a warning. The pump will continue to cycle.

Drum Empty: A drum empty setting will result in an alarm condition. The icon will show as a completely empty drum. The light tower and diagnostic LED will signal an alarm. The pump will stop cycling.

Press XX while E7 is selected to toggle between these options.

 To enter Setup screen 3, move the cursor to the E7 drum setting, then press once more.

Setup Screen 3

Setup screen 3 displays a non-resettable grand total counter (GT) at the top. Use Setup screen 3 to set the password (PW), assign a time limit for the screensaver (SS), and adjust the LCD contrast (CS).



- 1. Press to toggle from field to field through the screen.
- 2. Press 🗙 to scroll through available values for each field.
- 3. Press 🔷 again to set the value and move the cursor to the next data field.

NOTE: The screensaver turns off the backlight of the LCD after the specified time has elapsed. **A setting of 0 minutes is not recommended** because it turns off the screensaver, leaving the backlight on constantly.

NOTE: When in the contrast setting field press **X** to adjust the contrast + (up) or - (down) respectively.

4. To return to the Run screen, move the cursor to the

contrast setting, then press once more. If you entered Setup Mode from Prime Mode, you will be returned to that screen.

Diagnostic Mode

Diagnostics

Remote DataTrak can diagnose several problems with the supply system. When the monitor detects a problem, the LED (LE, Fig. 2) will flash and a diagnostic code will appear on the display. See Table 2, page 19.

If the accessory light tower kit is installed a light will illuminate or flash on the tower. See TABLE 2.

NOTE: Diagnostic screens will become the active screen as soon as the diagnostic code condition is detected. See TABLE 2.

To acknowledge the diagnosis and return to the normal

operating screen, press 🗙 once. To clear a diagnostic code, see the section specific to the code.

See FIG. 2. Press and release to access the Diagnostic screens. The system will enter Diagnostic Mode only if active warnings/alarms are present.

Runaway Diagnostic Code Screen

See FIG. 10. If pump runaway occurs, the Runaway screen becomes active, stopping the pump.



FIG. 10: Runaway Diagnostic Code Screen

- 1. Correct the condition causing the diagnostic code. See TABLE 2, page 19.
- 2. Press and release 🔯 to acknowledge the diagnostic code and return to the previous screen.

- 3. To clear the Runaway diagnostic code:
 - a. Press and release 🗙 to enter Diagnostic Mode from Run Mode (FIG. 4).
 - b. Press and release to scroll to the Runaway Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.
 - c. Press and hold **X** for 3 seconds while on the runaway Diagnostic screen to clear the diagnostic code and scroll to the next available Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.

NOTICE

Clearing this diagnostic code will immediately cause the air solenoid to activate, applying air to the motor.

NOTE: To disable runaway monitoring, go to setup mode and set runaway value to 0 (zero) or toggle (RT) off. See FIG. 7.

Diving Up Diagnostic Code Screen

See FIG. 11. If the pump shows diving up symptoms and the E1 Diagnostic Code is enabled, the Diving Up screen becomes active.



FIG. 11: Diving Up Diagnostic Code Screen

- Press and release X to exit the Diving Up screen. This will set the diagnostic code as a standing diagnostic code. A standing diagnostic code has not been cleared, simply acknowledged.
- Correct the condition causing the diagnostic code. See TABLE 2, page 19.
- 3. To clear the diagnostic code, navigate to the Diving Up diagnostic screen.
 - a. Press and release 🗙 to enter Diagnostic Mode from Run Mode.
 - b. Press and release X to scroll to the Diving Up Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.
 - c. Press and hold X for 3 seconds while on the Diving Up Diagnostic screen to clear the diagnostic code and scroll to the next available Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.

Diving Down Diagnostic Code Screen

See FIG. 12. If the pump shows diving down symptoms and the E2 Diagnostic Code is enabled, the Diving Down screen becomes active.



FIG. 12: Diving Down Diagnostic Code Screen

- 1. Press and release 🔀 to exit the Diving Down screen.
- 2. Correct the condition causing the diagnostic code. See TABLE 2, page 19.
- 3. To clear the diagnostic code, navigate to the Diving Down diagnostic screen.
 - a. Press and release 😿 to enter Diagnostic Mode from Run Mode.
 - b. Press and release 🐼 to scroll to the Diving Down Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.
 - c. Press and hold **X** for 3 seconds while on the Diving Down Diagnostic Screen to clear the diagnostic code and scroll to the next available Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.

Disconnected Solenoid Diagnostic Code Screen

See FIG. 13. If the system detects a disconnected air motor solenoid and the E4 Diagnostic Code is enabled, the Disconnected Solenoid screen becomes active.



FIG. 13: Disconnected Solenoid Diagnostic Code Screen

- 1. Press and release 😿 to exit the Disconnected Solenoid screen.
- 2. Correct the condition causing the diagnostic code; see TABLE 2, page 19.
- 3. This diagnostic code will automatically clear when the system detects that the solenoid is connected.

Drum Low/Empty Diagnostic Code Screen

See FIG. 14 and FIG. 15. If the drum low/empty sensor trips, the Drum Low or Drum Empty screen becomes active, depending on which sensor setting is chosen, see page 14.



FIG. 14: Drum Empty Diagnostic Code Screen



FIG. 15. Drum Low Diagnostic Code Screen

- 1. Press and release 😿 to exit the Drum Low/Empty screen. This will set the diagnostic code as a standing diagnostic code. A standing diagnostic code has not been cleared, simply acknowledged.
- 2. Replace the low or empty drum with a full drum. When the sensor no longer detects a low or empty drum the diagnostic code will clear automatically.

Reed Switch Diagnostic Code Screen

See FIG. 16.

If the system detects an air motor reed switch error, the Reed Switch Diagnostic screen becomes active.



FIG. 16. Reed Switch Diagnostic Code Screen

- 1. Press and release 🗭 to exit the Reed Switch Diagnostic screen.
- 2. Correct the condition causing the diagnostic code. See TABLE 2, page 19.
- 3. To clear the diagnostic code, navigate to the Reed Switch diagnostic screen.
 - a. Press and release 🗭 to enter Diagnostic Mode from Run Mode.
 - b. Press and release to scroll to the Reed Switch Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.
 - c. Press and hold **X** for 3 seconds while on the Reed Switch Diagnostic Screen to clear the diagnostic code and scroll to the next available Diagnostic screen, or return to the previous Run screen if no other Diagnostic screens are active.

Maintenance Counter Expired Screen

See FIG. 17.

If the system has counted down to 0 from the setpoint for number of cycles/gallons/liters, the Maintenance Counter Expired Screen becomes active.



FIG. 17. Maintenance Counter Expired Screen

- 1. Press and release 😿 to exit the Maintenance Counter Expired screen.
- 2. Perform necessary maintenance.
- 3. Reset the Maintenance Counter. See **Setup Screen** 2, page 13.

DataTrak Diagnostic Codes

Symbol	Code No.	Code Name	Diagnosis	Cause	LED Flash Code*	Accessory Light Tower Code
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Runaway	Pump running faster than set runaway limit.	 Increased air pressure. Increased fluid output. Exhausted fluid supply. 	2	Red Solid
E1 🛱	E1	Diving Up	Leak during upstroke.	Worn piston valve or packings.	7	Yellow Solid
E2	E2	Diving Down	Leak during downstroke.	Worn intake valve or priming rod seal.	6	Yellow Solid
	E4	Disconnected Solenoid	Solenoid is disconnected.	 Solenoid unplugged. Damaged solenoid wires. 	3	Red Solid
E7	E7	Drum Empty	Drum empty sensor has tripped.	Replace empty drum with full drum to clear.	4	Red Solid
E7	E7	Drum Low	Drum low sensor has tripped.	Replace empty drum with full drum to clear.	4	Red Flashing
E5-6.	E5	Reed Switch	The air motor has seen multiple up strokes without a down stroke, or vice versa.	Damaged or disconnected reed switches.	8	Yellow Solid
~ 00000		Maintenance Counter Expired	Maintenance Counter has counted down to 0 from setpoint.	Number of cycles/gallons/liters specified by setpoint have passed since last reset.	5	Yellow Flashing

Table 2: Diagnostic Codes

NOTE: *LED (LE, page 10) will flash a code, pause, then repeat.

Parts

DataTrak, 24W477



Ref	Part	Description	Quantity
1	114182	SCREW, M6x16mm	2
2	120885	SCREW, M5x14mm	2
3	120904	SCREW, M5x18mm	1
4	122716	SENSOR, inductive, M12	1
5	127141	COLLAR, clamp	2
6	17A532	BAR, bracket, DM	1
7	17A640	HARNESS, datatrak	1
8	24A032	SWITCH, reed assembly	1
9	24A326	BRACKET, mounting, assembly	1
10	24V761	BRACKET, mounting, DM	1
11	255415	PENDANT, datatrak	1
12	158491	FITTING, nipple	1
13	190451	UNION, adapter	1
14	127746	VALVE, power, 1/2 NPT	1
18	127761	POWER SUPPLY, 100-240V	1
19	16K281	VENT, breather, muffler	1
20	17A531	SOFTWARE, GCA	1

Customer Provided Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) Machine Monitoring Kit, 24W478



Ref	Part	Description	Quantity
101	114182	SCREW, M6x16mm	2
102	122716	SENSOR, inductive	1
103	127141	COLLAR, clamp	2
104	127746	VALVE, power, 1/2 NPT	1
105	158491	FITTING, nipple	1
106	16K281	VENT, breather, muffler	1
107	190451	UNION, adapter	1
109	24A032	SWITCH, reed assembly	1
110	24W155	BRACKET, mounting, assembly	1
111	24W189	ENCLOSURE, electronics, PLC interface	1

Light Tower Kit, 127187



ti24322a

Customer Signal Module Kit, 24V979



ti24323a

Ref	Part	Description	Quantity
201		RAIL, mount	0.25
202		BLOCK, terminal	4
203		BLOCK, end stop	2
204		RESISTOR, 330 Ohm, 3W	3
205		COVER, tag	4
206		SLEEVE	1
207		CONNECTOR, 5 pin	1

Schematics

DataTrak



Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring Kit



Technical Data

General Industry Ram - Kit Accessories					
	US	Metric			
External power supply requirements (DataTrak)					
AC power units 100-240 Vac, 50/60 Hz, single phase, 1 amp					
External power supply requirements (Customer Provided PLC Machine Monitoring Kit)					
DC power units	24 Vdc, 1 amp				

Graco Standard Warranty

Graco warrants all equipment referenced in this document which is manufactured by Graco and bearing its name to be free from defects in material and workmanship on the date of sale to the original purchaser for use. With the exception of any special, extended, or limited warranty published by Graco, Graco will, for a period of twelve months from the date of sale, repair or replace any part of the equipment determined by Graco to be defective. This warranty applies only when the equipment is installed, operated and maintained in accordance with Graco's written recommendations.

This warranty does not cover, and Graco shall not be liable for general wear and tear, or any malfunction, damage or wear caused by faulty installation, misapplication, abrasion, corrosion, inadequate or improper maintenance, negligence, accident, tampering, or substitution of non-Graco component parts. Nor shall Graco be liable for malfunction, damage or wear caused by the incompatibility of Graco equipment with structures, accessories, equipment or materials not supplied by Graco, or the improper design, manufacture, installation, operation or maintenance of structures, accessories, equipment or materials not supplied by Graco.

This warranty is conditioned upon the prepaid return of the equipment claimed to be defective to an authorized Graco distributor for verification of the claimed defect. If the claimed defect is verified, Graco will repair or replace free of charge any defective parts. The equipment will be returned to the original purchaser transportation prepaid. If inspection of the equipment does not disclose any defect in material or workmanship, repairs will be made at a reasonable charge, which charges may include the costs of parts, labor, and transportation.

THIS WARRANTY IS EXCLUSIVE, AND IS IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

Graco's sole obligation and buyer's sole remedy for any breach of warranty shall be as set forth above. The buyer agrees that no other remedy (including, but not limited to, incidental or consequential damages for lost profits, lost sales, injury to person or property, or any other incidental or consequential loss) shall be available. Any action for breach of warranty must be brought within two (2) years of the date of sale.

GRACO MAKES NO WARRANTY, AND DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, IN CONNECTION WITH ACCESSORIES, EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS OR COMPONENTS SOLD BUT NOT MANUFACTURED BY GRACO. These items sold, but not manufactured by Graco (such as electric motors, switches, hose, etc.), are subject to the warranty, if any, of their manufacturer. Graco will provide purchaser with reasonable assistance in making any claim for breach of these warranties.

In no event will Graco be liable for indirect, incidental, special or consequential damages resulting from Graco supplying equipment hereunder, or the furnishing, performance, or use of any products or other goods sold hereto, whether due to a breach of contract, breach of warranty, the negligence of Graco, or otherwise.

FOR GRACO CANADA CUSTOMERS

The Parties acknowledge that they have required that the present document, as well as all documents, notices and legal proceedings entered into, given or instituted pursuant hereto or relating directly or indirectly hereto, be drawn up in English. Les parties reconnaissent avoir convenu que la rédaction du présente document sera en Anglais, ainsi que tous documents, avis et procédures judiciaires exécutés, donnés ou intentés, à la suite de ou en rapport, directement ou indirectement, avec les procédures concernées.

Graco Information

Sealant and Adhesive Dispensing Equipment

For the latest information about Graco products, visit www.graco.com. For patent information, see www.graco.com/patents.

TO PLACE AN ORDER, contact your Graco distributor, go to www.graco.com and select "Where to Buy" in the top blue bar, or call to find the nearest distributor. If calling from the US: 800-746-1334 If calling from outside the US: 0-1-330-966-3000

All written and visual data contained in this document reflects the latest product information available at the time of publication. Graco reserves the right to make changes at any time without notice.

Original instructions. This manual contains English. MM 334222

Graco Headquarters: Minneapolis International Offices: Belgium, China, Japan, Korea

GRACO INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES • P.O. BOX 1441 • MINNEAPOLIS MN 55440-1441 • USA Copyright 2014, Graco Inc. All Graco manufacturing locations are registered to ISO 9001. www.graco.com

Revision B, January 2017